May 11, 2017 Minutes

MICHAEL WILKES, MD, CHAIR ELIZABETH MUNGUIA, VICE-CHAIR

YOLO COUNTY HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES AGENCY

GONZALEZ BUILDING, COMMUNITY ROOM 25 NORTH COTTONWOOD STREET, WOODLAND, CA 95695

The Yolo County Health Council met on the 11th Day of May 2017 in the Community room at the Gonzalez Building at 25 North Cottonwood Street, Woodland, CA at 9:00 a.m.

| VOTING MEMBERS PRESENT: | Elizabeth Munguia, District 1; Michael Wilkes, District 2; Carri Ziegler, District 3; Valerie Olson, District 5; Deborah Ward, At-Large Member; John Tan, At-Large Member; Scott Hatcher, EMCC; Lauren Adams, First 5 Yolo; Kathleen Middings, MCAH Advisory Board; Jose Ceja, Yolo County Children's Alliance; James Glica-Hernandez, Local Mental Health Board; Anna Darzins, Elica Health Centers; Allan Yamashiro, Sutter Health; Sherri Olswang, Woodland Health Care |
|-------------------------|--|
| VOTING MEMBERS ABSENT: | James Zuniga, At-Large Member; Dawn Myers Purkey, Commission on Aging & Adult Services; Alicia Kelly, CommuniCare Health Center; Bambi Eagle, Northern Valley Indian Health; Chris Kelsch, Winters Health Care; |
| STAFF & GUESTS PRESENT: | Jan Babb, HHSA Branch Director, Community Health; Patrick Blacklock, CAO; Ron Chapman, Health Officer, HHSA; Jessica Jones, Assistant Deputy to Supervisor Saylor; Ashley Logins-Miller, Secretary, HHSA; Marcel Horowitz, UC Cooperative Extension; Don Saylor, Supervisor, District 2;Laurie Somerhausen, HHSA; Emily Vaden, HHSA; Tia Will, Community Member |

9:00 A.M. CALL TO ORDER

WELCOME AND INTRODUCTIONS – Michael Wilkes, Chair The May 11, 2017 Health County meeting was called to order at 9:00 a.m., at which time around the table introductions occurred and quorum was confirmed.

- 2. CONSIDER APPROVAL OF AGENDA Michael Wilkes, Chair
 - Today, the Board of Supervisors update will become before the State and County update.
 - As a reminder, agendas are prepared about a week prior to the meeting. If anyone has any ideas or suggestions for agenda items, please send them to Michael Wilkes or Ashley Logins-Miller.
- **3.** Approve the <u>April 13, 2017 MINUTES</u> Michael Wilkes, Chair

 Motion: Valerie Olson
 Second: Deborah Ward
 Discussion: None
 Vote: Unanimous
- 4. PUBLIC COMMENT None at this time.

5. BOARD OF SUPERVISORS UPDATE – Supervisor Don Saylor

- On Tuesday, the Board of Supervisors heard the early budget presentation; which coupled with the HHSA
 department briefing was very insightful. Emerging issues mentioned in that briefing included, IHSS funding
 uncertainty, ACA uncertainty, and the concern about individuals seeking services due to immigration status.
- Two weeks ago, the annual Cap to Cap Delegation occurred. The health team was very strong and included representation from insurance companies, health systems, and public officials. The team went door to door in the Capital to advocate for continued rational health care programs and systems.
- Supervisor Saylor acknowledged Jan Babb for her efforts and time in Yolo County as the Branch Director of Community Health, Director of Public Health Nursing, and MCAH Director.
- 6. STATE AND COUNTY UPDATE Patrick Blacklock
 - **Budget:** Overall, the local budget is fairly stable but Yolo County is experiencing changes due to State and Federal changes. The primary impact of those changes will be felt in the Health & Human Services Agency.
 - **Service Centers:** CalWORKs and CalFresh have reduction in funding. Several displaced staff were offered positions in other HHSA programs in order to have a place to land if they choose.
 - **Behavioral Health**: There has been a significant increase in inpatient hospitalizations costs. Analysis has shown that the elimination of the crisis management program in 2008-2009 the management

Minutes – May 11, 2017

oversight was lost. The default became to hospitalize a patient, even if it wasn't the right fit or least restrictive options. Now looking at reinstating a crisis management program to better evaluate and match patients with the right resources for them. Although this may not end up being a cost saving effort, it will lead to better services. A proposal will be going to the Board of Supervisors to better case manage this population, which has one potential impact will be reduced impatient hospitalization costs.

- IHSS: The Governor's proposed cost shift of IHSS would likely have an impact of \$1.5-3 million in Yolo County. As there is no alternate funding, this would likely be pure general funds. Because of this, now in a position of being unable to fund additional positions and programs. Additional information will be available after the Governor's May revise is released.
- Health care: Patrick recommends that Health Council have a presentation on CMSP, especially looking at impacts due to changes at the Federal level.
 - Under California Welfare Institutions Code Section 17000, Counties are required to provide indigent health care. Yolo County is one of 35 counties that participate in County Medical Services Program (CMSP) to meet that requirement.
 - When ACA went into effect, the dynamic changed. CMSP has very low utilization now but it is still a working and available program. The original funding streams could be turned back on if the State chose and also has a significant reserve.
 - If Medi-Cal gets rolled back so that single indigent adults are not covered, CMSP will be available. However, CMSP is not as comprehensive as Medi-Cal.
 - In the past 2,000 individuals were covered under YCHIP prior to ACA. With the expansion of ACA an addition of over 15,000 individuals were insured.

7. COMMUNITY HEALTH BRANCH REPORT – Jan Babb, Community Health Branch Director HANDOUT

May Community Health Branch Report

- The written report that is provided each month is generated on updates that are provided to the Board of Supervisors.
- HHSA is in the process in applying for a Naloxone grant from the State. Naloxone is a medication that is used when there is an opioid overdose. This medication would be distributed to entities that already have the ability to utilize it, as well as provide training, typically the first responders. Kristin Weivoda is preparing the proposal which is due on June 1st.
- Leigh Harrington, MD, the Mental Health Medical Director is interested in providing quarterly updates on the Mental Health services in HHSA.
- The dates have been established for the Public Health Accreditation Site visit, which will be September 11th and 12th. Part of the site visit includes a community partners meeting. The accreditation team is working to identify which partners to include in that meeting, which will include representation from Health Council.

8. HEALTH OFFICER REPORT – Dr. Ron Chapman, Health Officer

- Sharps Disposal Workgroup: This workgroup was established based on information from West Sacramento Fire Department regarding the volume of sharps needing disposal. The workgroup is still in the process of gathering information and should have more to share next month.
- **Oral Health Strategic Plan:** The final draft of the Oral Health Strategic Plan is ready. The process has been fantastic and has included involvement from community partners and representatives from Health Council. Ron would like to present that plan to Health Council and the Board of Supervisors. The Oral Health Steering Committee has decided to continue meeting monthly to discuss implementation of this plan.
- West Nile Virus: It is expected that this will be a big season for mosquitoes and West Nile Virus. The State has already announced the first human case of West Nile Virus, which is very early in the season.

Minutes – May 11, 2017

Recommended prevention includes utilizing insect repellant, wearing long sleeves and pants when outside at dawn and dusk.

• Norovirus: Yolo County is in the midst of a huge outbreak of vomiting and diarrhea in local schools; several cases have been confirmed to be Norovirus. There are now 555 cases in 32 schools throughout Yolo County. Sacramento County recently had a similar outbreak; their outbreak has stopped but ours has not. The Communicable Disease team is working hard to get information out to the schools and parents about the appropriate measures to take. Norovirus is highly contagious and causes fever, stomach ache, nausea, vomiting, and diarrhea. Symptoms last for 1-3 days; unfortunately, once symptom-free, the virus stays in the system and is still highly contagious for up to 48 hours after symptoms are gone. Norovirus can cause dehydration in the higher risk population, including elderly, very young, and the immune-compromised. The Communicable Disease team is working closely with the school on how to decontaminate surfaces and use appropriate products in schools.

PRESENTATIONS

- 9. HOMELESSNESS IN YOLO COUNTY Tracey Dickinson HANDOUT PowerPoint: <u>Homeless Update</u> <u>Yolo County Homeless Count 2017</u>
 - Please see the Yolo County Homeless Count 2017 Report for the corrected data.
 - The Homeless program is trying to establish another data source, similar to an electronic health record. This includes implementing an assessment called the VI-SPDAT. This evidenced informed assessment is designed to look at a variety of health factors and it being utilized across the nation. It includes questions about health status, traumatic history, length of homelessness, and family status. This assessment will help with data as well as prioritization of services.
 - Recently, the Homeless program has received some large grants. One of those grants is to expand services for high utilizers of emergency rooms by sending an outreach worker. In addition, efforts are being done to ramp up the program for co-occurring disorders.

ANNOUNCEMENTS

10. ELECT OFFICERS – Carri Ziegler

- According to the Health Council By-laws, there is an annual nomination for chair and vice-chair of the Council.
- Michael Wilkes has done a great job of keeping the Council looking ahead and moving forward. In addition, one of the newest members, Elizabeth Munguia has stepped into the role of vice-chair.
- The nomination committee comprised of Carri Ziegler and Chris Kelsch consulted with Jan Babb. Both Michael Wilkes and Elizabeth Munguia have agreed to continue to serve as the chair and vice-chair respectively.

Motion: Deborah WardSecond: Carri ZeiglerDiscussion: NoneVote: Unanimous

11. ESTABLISH SUBCOMMITTEE FOR ANNUAL REPORT TO BOS - Michael Wilkes

• Health Council aims to provide an annual report to the Board of Supervisors around the end of the fiscal year. This report typically includes a 3-5 page report, a 7-10 slide PowerPoint, and a quick presentation before the Board of Supervisors.

Minutes – May 11, 2017

- The Council decided to have the report to the Board of Supervisors on August 1st, with the Council reviewing the draft at the July meeting.
- The subcommittee working on the report will include Michael Wilkes, Valerie Olson, Carri Ziegler, Anna Darzin, and Elizabeth Munguia.
- Michael Wilkes will draft an outline and then the subcommittee will have a phone call.

12. MEMBER ANNOUNCEMENTS/SHARING

- James Glica-Hernandez: Local Mental Health Board is having public forums in May in West Sacramento, June in Woodland. This is an opportunity for the community to talk and learn about mental health. In addition, May is Mental Health month and there are many activities happening in the Bauer building.
- Jessica Jones: Supervisor Saylor is holding a Food Connect event on May 15th from 3:30- 5:00 p.m. at Mary L Stephens Library in Davis. Speakers include representatives from the Yolo Agriculture and Food Alliance, the Sacramento Food Policy Council, and the Davis Food Policy Council.
- Michael Wilkes: Bob Chason the past director at UC Davis Medical Center passed away unexpectedly this week.

ADJOURNMENT

13. NEXT MEETING: JUNE 8, 2017

- June
 - Housing
 - Oral Health Strategic Plan

PROPOSED ITEMS FOR FUTURE MEETINGS

- July
 - Adolescent Health
- September
 - Senior Health
- ٠
- CMSP
- Mental Health Quarterly Report
- Sharps Working group report
- Oral Health Strategic Plan
- Adolescent Health
- Seniors

The meeting was adjourned at 10:30 a.m.

Respectfully submitted by:

Ashley Logins-Miller, Secretary Yolo County Health Council